
Question: What weight will be given in the evaluation as it relates to “Diversity of 
Vendor”? If we are not a minority, women or disabled owned business that is greater 
than 51%, how will that impact the scoring and evaluation? If we were to use a sub-
contractor that is a MBE/WBE, would that help in the evaluation and scoring us as a 
vendor?  

 
Answer: A maximum of 5 points can be awarded for “Diversity of the Vendor” and for 
“Explanation of whether any services to be subcontracted to a third party.” 
 
Question: How many full-time employees do you all have?  
 
Answer: We have approximately 725 full-time employees, with approximately 500 of these 
employees covered under time and attendance policies. We also have approximately 970 
judges. 
 
Question: What services would you like the pricing around?  
 
Answer: We would like pricing information included for any HRIS services, except for  any 
services involving payroll processing. 
 
Question: When scheduling a demo, would there be a requirement to be on-site for 
this? 
 
Answer: Initial demos may be conducted virtually, however on-site demonstrations may be 
required of finalists.  
 
Question: FSE Count: Number of full-time employees? Number of part-time 
employees? Number of associates? Number of former workers requiring access?  
 
Answer: Approximately 725 full-time employees; less than 5 part-time employees; no 
associates; no former workers requiring access. 
 
Question: As there is no standardized assessment approach, or centralized 
authorization body, or accredited independent assessors for determining whether a 
particular solution is CJIS compliant, can you clarify your CJIS requirements?  As a 
rule, each law enforcement organization granting CJIS authorizations interprets 
solutions according to their own risk and compliance acceptance standards.  
 
Answer: As a state government entity, the AOIC is required to meet CJIS requirements as 
the information in the HRIS is highly confidential and contains personally identifiable 
information and thus requires the HRIS system, hosting platform, and the workflows 
programmed to be compliant in the CJIS areas included in the HRIS / SaaS platform. This 
includes, but is not limited to, encryption, cyber security protections, identity and 
authentication, disaster recovery, among other factors. Evaluation of how each HRIS 



meets the CJIS requirements for their respective SaaS platform, connectivity with laptop 
and mobile devices, and the protection of the AOIC’s data in the HRIS is an important 
requirement of the RFP process.  
 
The CJIS Policy Resource Center includes the Policy. Multiple sections of the CJIS policy 
may apply, but the AOIC cannot identify specific requirements when each HRIS system, 
the SaaS platform, and details of how the HRIS was developed impact compliance.  We 
want to also remind that the AOIC is required to perform an annual Service Organization 
Controls review for the HRIS system and platform, which will assess the controls and 
evaluate the SaaS platform and HRIS.  
 
Question: How is this RFP related to the RFP that the IL Courts Office of Statewide 
Pretrial Services (OSPS) issued in September 2024 for an HRIS solution?  
 
Answer: This RFP is separate from the earlier RFP issued in September 2024 for the IL 
Courts Office of Statewide Pretrial Services (OSPS). OSPS is becoming its own separate 
agency effective July 1, 2025. 
 
Question: Is your intention for AOIC/IL Judicial Branch and OSPS to standardize on the 
same HRIS going forward?  
 
Answer: No 
 
Question: Has the OSPS RFP been narrowed down to a shortlist of preferred vendors 
that are still under consideration?   
 
Answer: Unknown; AOIC HR is not coordinating HRIS procurement efforts with OSPS. 
 
Question: Assuming OSPS and AOIC/IL Judicial Branch would eventually 
select/standardize on the same HRIS solution, would you consider a solution from a 
vendor that did not participate in the OSPS RFP?  
 
Answer: Yes. OSPS will have a separate HRIS system from the AOIC. 
 
Question: Could you please let us know if there are any file size limitations for email 
attachments? 
 
Answer: Like Gmail and other e-mail systems, attachments are limited to 25mb in an e-
mail.  
 
Question: AOIC mentions that Scheduled Shift should not be editable. Could you 
please provide examples of Shifts for your workers, and how many shifts you allow? 
 
Answer: Currently there are no different shifts. 



Question: Given the complexity of the response and our desire to provide the most 
complete response, we would like to request a two-week extension. 
 
Answer: For consistency purposes, exceptions are not being granted. 
 
Question: The RFP indicates a phased approach where timekeeping and attendance 
will be implemented first. Could you share on the background on why AOIC is 
suggesting such a phasing. Also, are there any specific milestones or key dates by 
which certain modules or functionalities must be live, and is AOIC open to alternate 
proposals for the logical sequencing and phasing of solution go-lives for in-scope 
process areas? 
 
Answer: The time and attendance module is our first priority, with an anticipated go-live 
date of 1/1/26. The AOIC is open to alternate proposals, however the implementation of 
the time and attendance module must be first. 
 
Question: The RFP requests 12 months of hyper care, we typically see around 60 days 
of hyper care in this type of project.  What are the thoughts around needing such an 
extended hyper care cycle? 
 
Answer: AOIC would be open to reviewing proposals with a shorter hyper care cycle, 
however we desire 12-months of support to ensure yearly/annual processes run smoothly 
and as expected. 
 
Question: Is AOIC open to considering implementing some of the proposed product's 
help-desk functionality within the HRIS system to support both a knowledge-base as 
well as ticketing support? 
 
Answer: Yes 
 
Question: The RFP indicates Vendors need to staff a dedicated help-desk to support 
system operations.  Is this a requirement for the hyper care period only or for a longer 
duration? 
 
Answer: Support will be critical at the outset of the implementation of the HRIS. We 
anticipate this will be a requirement for the initial term of the contract, and will want the 
option to consider as an annual service. 
 
Question: While we understand AOIC expects the HRIS solution to initially handle 
1,500 concurrent users, can you clarify the number of total users versus core 
administrative users anticipated across the new HRIS? 
 
Answer: Of the 1500 users, we anticipate no more than 30 core administrative users. 
 



Question: The RFP indicates a desire to implement position control.  Will the filling of 
open positions need to be budgeted in any way that would require interaction with an 
AOIC Finance System? 
 
Answer: Not necessary, but willing to explore options. 
 
Question: How and where is data currently being stored, and can you quantify the 
volume of data that will need to be converted to the new system? 
 
Answer: Some data is currently stored in custom database applications. Other data is in 
Spreadsheets, Access programs, or other client-based software. However, the concern is 
that any existing data needed for the HRIS is able to be migrated into the structure and data 
fields of the new HRIS to provide the required functionality. Because all of the data is not in 
an existing HRIS system, it is difficult to estimate the size of the data to migrate.   
 
Question: What existing systems and proposed third-party systems require 
integration with the new HRIS? Is there a proposed future state integration scheme 
that can be shared, indicating the statewide systems the new HRIS must integrate 
with? 
 
Answer: Not at present. 
 
Question: How many unique data sources do you anticipate will provide data for your 
new HRIS platform? 
 
Answer: As mentioned above, HR data, reports, and information is currently not in a single 
HRIS. Some information is in structured applications, some in spreadsheets, Access 
programs, or other client-based software. At the outset of the implementation project, the 
HR office will work with the selected HRIS partner to understand the data needs to support 
the selected HRIS and the data currently used, as well as resulting gaps in data.   
 
Question: Are there any data quality or integrity issues in the current system that need 
to be addressed during migration? 
 
Answer: Not that we are aware of. 
 
Question: What tools and technologies are currently being used for integrations? 
 
Answer: The AOIC would prefer integrations be based upon national standards and 
security specifications (CJIS, FedRamp, etc.). This ensures security best practices and 
standards are followed. 
 
Question: What is AOIC's anticipated budget for this initiative? 
 



Answer: Open 
 
Question: Can you clarify a circumstance in which AOIC may want to make one or 
more awards, as mentioned in the RFP Section II Directions on page 3? 
 
Answer: It is not likely that more than one award will occur. 
 
Question: If a feature can be supported through integration with an optional third-
party solution (i.e., a third-party solution where integration is an option and often 
utilized by other customers, but is not included as part of this proposal), how would 
AOIC like vendors to respond in Attachment F (i.e., with a 3, 2, 1, or 0)? 
 
Answer: We would recommend the vendor supplement their response with comments 
addressing these situations. 
 
Question: As a part of the proposal submission process, there will be confidential 
information that will be provided in our proposals related to product, services, client 
references, among others. Please confirm that AOIC will maintain the confidentiality 
of the vendor's information and that this confidential information will only be used for 
the review and evaluation of the vendor's written response to the Request for 
Proposal, subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140) and other 
applicable freedom of information laws. 
 
Answer: Vendor submissions will only be used for the review and evaluation of the vendor's 
written response to the Request for Proposal and all information will be kept confidential 
to the extent possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


